M. John Raber

Vi ce President, Operations & Engineering
Transok, Inc.

P. O. Box 3008

Tul sa, OK 74101-3008

Re: CPF No. 44002

Dear M. Raber:

Encl osed is the Final Order issued by the Associate

Adm nistrator for Pipeline Safety in the above-referenced case.
It makes a finding of violation and assesses a civil penalty of
$1,000. The penalty paynent ternms are set forth in the Final
Order. Your receipt of the Final Order constitutes service of
t hat docunent under 49 C.F.R 8§ 190.5.

Si ncerely,

Gaendolyn M Hi I |

Pi pel i ne Conpliance Registry
Ofice of Pipeline Safety
Encl osure

CERTI FIED MAIL -- RETURN RECEI PT REQUESTED







DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATI ON
RESEARCH AND SPECI AL PROGRAMS ADM NI STRATI ON
OFFI CE OF PI PELI NE SAFETY
WASHI NGTON, DC 20590

)
In the Matter of )
)
Transok, Inc., ) CPF No. 44002
)
Respondent . )
)
FI NAL ORDER

On June 23, 1994, pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 60117, a
representative of the Ofice of Pipeline Safety (OPS) initiated
an investigation of Respondent’s tel ephonic report of an
incident involving its pipeline system As a result of the
investigation, the Director, Southwest Region, OPS, issued to
Respondent, by letter dated August 2, 1994, a Notice of
Probabl e Violation and Proposed Cvil Penalty (Notice). 1In
accordance with 49 C F.R 8 190.207, the Notice proposed
finding that Respondent had violated 49 CF. R § 191.5 and
proposed assessing a civil penalty of $5,000 for the alleged
vi ol ati on.

Respondent responded to the Notice by letter dated August 31,
1994 (Response). Respondent contested the allegations, offered
information in explanation of the allegations, and requested a
heari ng, which was held in the Sout hwest Regional Ofice, OPS,
on July 21, 1997

FI NDI NG OF VI OLATI ON

The Notice alleged that Respondent had violated 49 C F. R

8§ 191.5. The regulation states that each operator mnust give
notice to the National Response Center (NRC) of each incident
“at the earliest practicable noment foll ow ng discovery.”
“Incident” is defined at 49 CF.R 8§ 191.3 as an event that
involves a release of gas froma pipeline or other facility and
results in (1) a death or injury requiring in-patient
hospitalization, or (2) estimated property damage of the
operator or others, including the cost of gas |ost, of at |east
$50, 000.



The OPS investigation reveal ed that on June 22, 1994, at
approximately 6:00 P.M CDT, a section of Respondent’s 12-inch
natural gas gathering pipeline at the G easy Creek Storage
Field, located in Wtunka, Oklahonma, ruptured. The rupture

al l oned natural gas to escape to the atnosphere but, aside from
damage to the pipeline and the | oss of gas, no property danage
occurred. According to Respondent’s witten incident report,
the estimated pressure in the pipeline at the tine of the
rupture was 686 psig, and the leak |asted for approximtely

38 mnutes. Approximately sixteen hours el apsed before
Respondent reported the incident to the NRC. These facts were
confirnmed by Respondent at the hearing.

Respondent attributed the delay in reporting to its initial
uncertainty as to the anount of gas that was lost. Inits
Response and at the hearing, Respondent argued that on the
eveni ng of June 22, 1994, its on-site personnel initially
estimated the value of the property damage, including gas

| oss, to be between $5,000 and $10,000. They arrived at this
estimate, in part, by conparing this leak to a previous |eak
several nonths earlier at the sane storage field. On the
eveni ng of June 22, Respondent reported the event to the

Okl ahoma Cor porati on Conm ssion, which has a | ower threshold
reporting requirenment, but not to the NRC. Respondent

mai ntains that it did not report the rupture to the NRC that
eveni ng because it did not believe the rupture constituted a
reportable incident as defined by 49 CF. R § 191. 3.

On the norning of June 23, 1994, Respondent’s safety
coordinator arrived on the scene to investigate. Follow ng
the rupture, a large anmount of nud had col | apsed on top of

t he damaged pipeline, making it difficult for the safety
coordinator to visually examne it. It was not until after

the on-site personnel had excavated the site that the safety
coordi nator could see that a section of pipeline approxi mtely
nine feet long had conpletely ruptured. At that tinme, the
safety coordi nator sought and obtai ned an estinate of gas

| oss fromthe engi neering and operations departnent. After
reviewi ng the engineering figures, the safety coordi nator
concluded for the first tine that the rupture qualified as a
reportable incident. The safety coordinator then reported the
incident to the NRC (Report #245668) at approxi mately 10: 15
A.M CDT on June 23. Unfortunately, due to a conputer error,
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the data for the first report was lost. At 11:13 A M CDT, the
safety coordi nator again reported the incident(Report #245689)
this time successfully. Because the conputer error is
attributable to the NRC, for enforcenent purposes Respondent

is considered to have nmade its tel ephonic report to the NRC at
10:15 A M CDT on June 23, 1994 -- sixteen hours after the
rupture.

Respondent’s primary argunment in its Response and at the
hearing is that it conplied with reporting requirenments because
it pronptly notified NRC as soon as it discovered that the
rupture likely nmet the incident reporting criteria. At the
heari ng, Respondent al so presented an alternative argunent.
Respondent argued that reporting nmay not have been required
because the value of the property damage, including the gas

| ost, may not have reached the threshold anount for mandatory
reporting. The “renedial actions” section of the tel ephonic
report indicates that 80,000,000 cbf of gas were reported

rel eased. (Tel ephonic report, p. 1). The sanme section |lists
the reported value of the gas |ost as $140, 000. (Tel ephonic
report, p. 1). Three weeks after the tel ephonic report, on
July 7, 1994, Respondent submtted a witten incident report,
as required by 499 CF.R 8 191.9. The witten report |owered
the estinmate of the ampbunt of gas lost to 20,271, 000 cbf

(it ncident report, part 3 attachnent) and | owered the estinmated
val ue of the property danmage, including gas |oss, to $63, 500.
(I'ncident report, part 1). At the hearing, Respondent
confirnmed that the anpbunt of gas |ost was 20,271,000 cbf and
val ued the gas | oss at approximately $37,000. Respondent al so
stated that the cost of repairing the pipeline was approxi-
mat el y $75,000. Thus, total danages were approxi mately
$112,000. While there is sone discrepancy anong the damage
estimates in the tel ephonic report, the witten report, and
the hearing, all three estimates -- $140,000 in the tel ephonic
report, $63,500 in the incident report, and $112,000 at the
hearing -- exceed the threshold anmount of $50,000. Therefore,
| find that the threshold reporting requirement was net.

Pronpt reporting of a pipeline incident to the NRCis crucial
to Federal investigators ability to investigate and resol ve

pi pel i ne safety concerns. Once a report is made, investigators
must decide at the outset whether a full Federal investigation
IS necessary. Failure to report pronptly hinders the decision-
maki ng process and coul d j eopardi ze the outcone of any
subsequent investigation. Thus, OPS encourages pipeline
operators to report incidents to the NRC at the earliest



practicable nonent, even if at the tinme the tel ephone call is
pl aced the operator is uncertain whether reporting is required.
This policy of erring on the side of caution ensures that
delays in reporting incidents, as defined by the regul ations,
w Il be avoided. This policy is not overly burdensone because
only the nost basic and essential information is collected

during the telephone call. After a nore thorough investiga-
tion, the operator can submt nore detailed information in the
witten incident report. |If an operator subsequently discovers

that a telephonically reported incident did not neet the
reporting criteria, the operator can cancel its report. Thus,
an operator should not delay a tel ephonic report sinply to

i ncrease the accuracy of the damage estinate.

The | egal basis for the violation is the requirenent set forth
at 49 CF.R 8 191.5 that operators report incidents “at the
earliest practicable nonent follow ng discovery.” OPS
interprets the regulation to nean that an incident should
generally be reported within one to two hours followng its

di scovery. OPS has notified all pipeline operators of this
interpretation through Alert Notice ALN-91-01, dated April 15,
1991. Wile the Alert Notice provides gui dance about the
regulation, it does not formthe | egal basis for violation.

Not all incidents nust be reported within one to two hours.

OPS recogni zes that there will be occasions immediately
follow ng an incident where it is inpossible for the operator
either to gauge whether a report is necessary or to gather the
reportable information. Thus, when OPS | earns that an operator
has not submtted a tel ephonic report within one to two hours,
OPS makes a case-by-case determ nati on whet her the operator
shoul d have known that a report was likely to be required and,
if so, whether the operator had adequate opportunity to coll ect
the reportable information.

In this case, Respondent waited approxi mately sixteen hours
before attenpting to report the incident to the NRC
Respondent seeks to justify its initial decision not to report
on its own underestimation of the anmount of gas lost. At the
heari ng, Respondent stated that because another |eak had
previously occurred at this facility and the danmage fromt hat

leak -- including the value of the gas lost -- was mnimal, it
assunmed that this | eak would al so be too small to trigger the
reporting requirenents. It was not until the norning after the

incident, after the safety coordinator had visually inspected
the ruptured pipeline and an engi neer had mat hematical |y

cal cul ated the estimted anmount of gas |lost, that the
Respondent reported the incident to the NRC



Wi | e Respondent’s reasoning may explain why it did not
pronptly report the incident, it does not excuse the del ay.
One of the key purposes of the early reporting requirenent --
pronpt notification of federal investigators -- is underm ned
when an operator allows a substantial anount of tinme to pass
before placing the tel ephone call.

In this case, Respondent had enough information to concl ude
that the rupture would likely trigger the reporting
requirenents. First, the record states that Respondent
recei ved several telephone calls fromprivate citizens who
reported hearing a | oud noise comng fromthe storage field.
These reports should have tipped off Respondent that a ful
rupture, not just a small |eak, had occurred. Second, the
pi peline that ruptured was a twelve-inch storage line. Wen a
rupture occurs at a storage facility, there is the potenti al
for a significant anount of gas loss. Finally, nonitors
indicated that the | eak persisted for over thirty mnutes --
enough time for a significant anmount of gas to be rel eased.

The fact that there is a discrepancy between the anount of gas
actually lost and the anount tel ephonically reported |ost does
not buttress Respondent’s argunent. Tel ephonic reporting
shoul d not be delayed in order to gather nore accurate data.
Respondent’s inability to file an accurate report neither

expl ains nor justifies why a tel ephonic report was not nade

t he sane evening that the incident occurred. Thus, despite
Respondent’s clainms, | find that Respondent unjustifiably

del ayed its tel ephonic report.

Based on the information in the record, | find that Respondent
violated 49 C.F. R 8§ 191.5 by not providing tel ephonic notice
at the earliest practicable nmonent. When Respondent di scovered
that a | eak had occurred at its twelve-inch storage pipeline at
Greasy Creek, it should have been aware that the val ue of the

| ost gas and the cost of repair to the pipeline facility would
likely exceed $50,000. At that tinme, Respondent should have
reported the incident to the NRC, which operates 24 hours a
day. Once on-site the next norning, the safety coordinator
could have clarified the actual danmage estimates and submtted
foll owup reports as needed.

This finding of violation will be considered a prior offense in
any subsequent enforcenent action taken agai nst Respondent.



ASSESSMENT OF PENALTY

Under 49 U S.C. 8§ 60122, Respondent is subject to a civil
penalty not to exceed $25,000 per violation for each day of the
violation up to a maxi mum of $500, 000 for any related series of
vi ol ati ons.

49 U.S.C. § 60122 and 49 CF.R 8§ 190.225 require that, in
determ ning the amount of the civil penalty, | consider the
followng criteria: nature, circunmstances, and gravity of the
vi ol ation, degree of Respondent’s cul pability, history of
Respondent’s prior offenses, Respondent’s ability to pay the
penal ty, good faith by Respondent in attenpting to achieve
conpliance, the effect on Respondent’s ability to continue in
busi ness, and such other matters as justice may require.

OPS encour ages pronpt incident reporting based on the need to
deci de at the outset whether an incident warrants federal
investigation. The safety bulletins which OPS issues to

pi pel i ne operators as well as decisions on whether follow up
corrective actions are required may be based on information
gathered during a federal investigation. Thus, the pronpt
reporting of a pipeline incident constitutes the key elenent in
the initial step of identifying and resolving pipeline safety

i ssues.

The Notice proposed assessing a civil penalty of $5, 000.

In this case, Respondent offered sone evidence which, while not
excusing the delay, justifies mtigating the penalty anount.
Respondent denonstrated good faith by pronptly reporting the

|l eak to the appropriate state authorities. |In addition,
Respondent stated at the hearing that it has since revised its
operational practices to report all likely incidents

expedi tiously.

Accordingly, having reviewed the record and considered the
assessnment criteria, | assess Respondent a civil penalty of
$1,000. | find that Respondent is capable of paying this
penal ty anount and doing so wll not affect Respondent’s
ability to continue in business.

Paynent of the civil penalty nust be made within 20 days of
service. Paynent can be nade by sending a certified check or
noney order (containing the CPF Nunber for this case) payable
to “U S. Departnent of Transportation” to the Federal Aviation
Adm ni stration, M ke Mnroney Aeronautical Center, Financial
OQperations Division (AMZ-320), P.O Box 25770, Cklahoma City,
K 73125.



Federal regulations (49 CF.R 8 89.21(b)(3)) also permt this
paynment to be made by wire transfer, through the Federal
Reserve Commruni cations System (Fedwire), to the account of the
U S Treasury. Detailed instructions are contained in the
encl osure. After conpleting the wire transfer, send a copy of
the electronic funds transfer receipt to the Ofice of Chief
Counsel (DCC-1), Research and Special Prograns Adm nistration,
Room 8407, U.S. Departnent of Transportation, 400 Seventh
Street, S.W, Washington, D.C. 20590-0001.

Questions concerning wire transfers should be directed to:

Val eri a Dungee, Federal Aviation Adm nistration, M ke Mnroney
Aeronautical Center, Financial Operations Division (AMZ-320),
P. O Box 25770, Cklahoma City, OK 73125; (405) 954-47109.

Failure to pay the $1,000 civil penalty will result in accrual
of interest at the current annual rate in accordance with

31 US.C 8§ 3717, 4 CF.R §8 102.13 and 49 CF. R § 89.23.
Pursuant to those sanme authorities, a late penalty charge of
six percent (6% per annumw Il be charged if paynment is not
made within 110 days of service. Furthernore, failure to pay
the civil penalty may result in referral of the matter to the
Attorney Ceneral for appropriate action in United States
District Court.

Under 49 C. F.R 8§ 190. 215, Respondent has a right to petition
for reconsideration of this Final Oder. The petition nust be
received within 20 days of Respondent’s receipt of the Final
Order and nust contain a brief statenent of the issue(s). The
filing of the petition automatically stays the paynent of any
civil penalty assessed. All other terns of the order,

i ncluding any required corrective action, shall remain in ful
effect unless the Associate Adm nistrator, upon request, grant
a stay. The terns and conditions of this Final Order are

ef fective upon receipt.

Ri chard B. Fel der
Associ ate Adninistrator for
Pi pel i ne Safety

Date |ssued: 08/18/ 1997
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